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. of the herders and shot a couple of the indians and run off vith a

the

valley here that I aud another man and you furnish me three of

}fﬁ;? your men and tomorrow morning when we can gee to foller a trail T1'1]
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be here with.my man and you furnish me with vour three men and we'll
#4pull out on their trail and I'll ba back in three days with your men,
Now, don't bother the setflers here on the valley." The chief says,
"I won't., I could scatter nmy men out and clean the valley out in
tﬁo hours.time\but I won't.do it." Theyfollowed the truil into the
mountains, into a gulch. It was getting dusk so they couldn't see
it very plain and Ranger Jones left the treil and went over the
ridge and into another Canyon. Now, he says, "Boys, get a little
sleep if you can get it for I'11 have you out early in the morning.
You can sfart a fire if you want po."' The nekt morning the old
gentlemand had them goihg. There was nothing said ard one man
####foélowed another, the §1d man firet, then the other white man
andthen the three indians. It kept a getting lighter ahd lighter
and they rean right into a flock of Eonies. He says tc the irdizns,
"You go see if you can recognize those horses." And he came back
and said, "Yes, them are our horses,® "You s&zy here and tele care
of them hprsgs." They moved along careful :und they saw a lfttle_
smoke. They got off their horses and he told one of the indians
to stay with then horses and the other indian to go with him and the
two white men and the indian crawled up to this camp, pretty near
onto t?em. He motioned them to set up, they had their guns cocked
all ready to shoot. One of thefmen wes up building the fire and
Jones says to this feller, "Stend still." The other feller leard the
noise out therevand~he came out of th: tent. He says to this fellow,

#keep right on going until you get to the éther sideof the fire," He
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says to the indian with them to go into their tent arnd get their guné
gnd see that you get every one of them and fetch them out here and
lay them down and then holler to your boys to fetch their horses up
with ther and come on into breakfast. They turned thetr horses loose
there and they stayed there until &along towards noon. Then they
packed theilr things all up, the things they had there, these fellows,
and started down the gulch, two indians with the horses and these two
hogse thieves on foot with an indian ‘behind them going down the trail
following the herd. Mr. Jones says to the indian on guard there
following these two whites up "If they make a break to run kill them
right on the spot."” They got down on the valley about sundown, turned

their horses out and put onedof the indisns guard over them, then he

- gsays to the other two indians, "1 want you two féllows to take charge

of the prisoners here. I don't want both of you to go to sleep, I
want one of you go go to gleep and the other stand guard, If they
make & break to run kiil éhem.* The next morning they got packed up
and give those two thieves a horse to ride for they were out of the
iimber; out of the canyon, "Now," he says, "Boys, a couple of you,

take the le ad here with the horses and we three wiil follow you.

. Jog 'em right along, we'll travel now." That afternoon they pulled
-into the indian camp and they was glad to see them fellows back there.

Jones says to the old chief, "Here's the prisoners, we'll turn them
ovér to you." The chief says, "They're going to have a white man's
trial.* Jones seys,"If we do that we'll have to go to town."™ The
chief says, "We'll go to town then." Thenext morning Jones was at
.their camp réady to go with thé prisoners. They was a big bunch of "
indians followed them. They got into town and this man Jones was

one 6f the vigilance commi:tee but I didn't know'it tefore, though. |,

He got the vigilance coumittee together and laid the case before. them,
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. on the’range and kept a getting deeper andfour flour was about

..

just how j¢ was. It was death to sell an indldn whiskey, commit !
mrder too. The question was what to do with them. This indian

chief wanted a white man's trial. They were talking among themselves,

the vigilance committee was, what was the best vay to get rid of

them. One of them says, "Give them to the indians."  They took a
vote on it and it all went unanimously to give them tothe indiang.
He says, "Now if we give thiése men to you you won't torture them,
you'll kill the," AYes," he says,"we'll do that." When the left
town some of the vigilance comwittee wehh with them, went with the
indians. I don't lnow how they killed them, I never heard, but Jones It
told me that they -took thetr mames and address, their folks namés, ’
and some of the vigilance committee notified their folks back east

that they were killed by the indians at such a time,

We took flour from here, we sold a lot of it, but we supposed :
we kept enough to last througi: the winter. It was getting élong - T
he middle of the winter and we see we was getting shy of flour

and aomebody had to go to town and get flour. The snow was deep

gone and we was waiting until we could get ove}.the range to gef .
some but we couldn't and our flour was gone but we had plenty of -0
meat and it was six weeks from the time our flour was out until we

éot’a sack. When we did get flour we had a regular banquet, mostly L

panéakea and bear grease., We had plenty of meat, elk and deer and

a,_bear andLbeaver. We had two or thrge old fashioned dutch ovens and s

I used to put a layer of bear meat in the bottom 6f the biggest |
oven we had, it ‘was greasy a good deal like pork, then a layer of

elk meat, that was dry, then venison, generally put in a chunk of ta

. _ ' . |
eer o? elk tallow, then a layer of beaver on top of that, with a o
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] 145. 1little talloi or suet, on top of that mixed in, then.I'd rake out
’ }kfﬁlpa few ashes and coals from the fireplace, set my oven on that, put '
WJ‘I‘ the cover on, and then I'd put some ashes and coals up on top of
’ - the oven and generally bank it up with & little ashes and coals
[ . around the oven. That would be our morning's breakfast after it. -
,]n wﬁhad cooked all night. It was good too, juicy and nice and not dny.
I Efﬂ 4}’At noon we'd generally get a forked stick, each one of us, and roast
%;ikfthe meat over the coals, that would be our dinner meal. Generally
, at night we'd fry some in the frying pan. The one cooking in the
-dutch ovén would generally last for two breakfasts and for the
‘secpnd morning we would set it on the coals and warm it up. Ve
were running a very fancy hotel with our four kinds of meat'and
could;hgve them roasted, toasted, baked or any way to suit the
diner's fancy. There didn't any of us seem to relish it along
/ towards the last end. We didn't have any vegetables at all,
.nothing but the meat, and then more meat. When we went to town,
“about 60 miles away, we could usually get some dried fruits that
were shipped in from Salt Lake City and one thing we used quite a
littlé of was breakfast foo&, whole wheat, not.ground, put up in
" 5 or 10 poﬁnd sacks, little sacks. We'd cook it until it was tender
Just the same as we would rice today and we didn't have any mildk
or cream but usually had sugar to put on it. Occasionally we would
get a can of potatoes, potatoes was put up in cans there the same
as péaches is here and they would taste mighty good when we 6ould
" _get them. But bread and meat was our main diet and we had plenty .
lﬂyl of it., We'd make the bread by mixing a little baking powder,
fﬁiﬂ? aalratua, salt and water with the flour and then making a loaf of
; ﬂﬁﬁ 1t and baking it in the dutch oven and it was pretty good bread
| too. It was called a sour- dough bread and T midg &%}ﬁﬁd%P%%n
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146. about fifteen inches long by mixing ### flour and water into a

,}/{w"’ thin paste and setting it beside the fireplace and let it sour.

It didn't malite any difference how sour it got but if it got to00

. sour I would put a little salratus in it.to sweeten it. I would

P
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4 then put some of it in with the other mixture to be used the same

pﬂ{ae & yeast to make it raise and then I would bake it in’ the dutch

oven. It didn't take long to make that kind of bread, about like
making a batch of pancakee and it did the raising while it did the
baking. I think the bread was a little better when it was warm
than it was after it got cold. When it broke up in the epring

8o that we could get out everybody”come out feeling fine and nobody

was aick.

Aftef=we gof out in the 8pring there'was a gulch southeast of

us called Confederate Gulch that Fred wanted to get down to to see

what the prospect was for mines and he came back and said it looked

'flne to him, there was gold there but they had to sink holes , shafts,

there down to bed rock to get to it and then pump water out of the
holes so that the miners could get down to the bed rock to work
for_ﬁhe éold. He staked out a claim for himself and one for father.
PREEIRAB SR 4 I #148844  When Fred come back they held a
council of iar and decided to sell everything except one yoke of
oxeén, a wagon and "household" goods. We took the extra~cattle and
wagons, and the fur we had caught that winter, over to Vlrglnia
City and sold them and then came back to our camp and loaded up

our goods we .were going to keep into the wagon, everythlng except

my indian relics I had found during “the winter and father'wouldn't

‘have them in the wagon. We got over to Confederate Gulch and

father didn't like the looks of it. They had started to dig for

the gold by starting down stream from the bed rock and digging up
Btream by drifting,

or tunnelling through the Trock, untji] they
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147. got to the bed rock, The drift, or tunnel, sloped up all the time

J /?miﬂ*so that the water would run out. When they got to the bed rock if
they thoughtit would pay enough they was going to change the bed
J of the stream so that it would run around on the other side of the
mountain.i We camped up on the side hill #i# in a big tent and the
| J last fellow going to bed at night had to be the first fellow up
j . in the morning and it was usually me. We had two dogs and they gof
’ ) )Lydﬁf into a mixup with some wolves in the middle of a night and the dogs
*ﬁﬁ;””7thought it was safer in the tent that it wdas out of the tent. It
’ 5£1? was a big. white buffalo wold and the dogs would chase it up the
‘ J mountain and then it would turn and chase them back down and into
our tent pell mell, then they would whirl around and go back out and
’ ' - chase .the wolf back up hill again. One of our dogs was a bull dog
g and ‘it couldn't run very fast so that each time it was chased back
‘ ' down hill the wolf would nip it on the heels. Each time the,dogs 4
L gome into the tent they would jump over me'and'onto‘the resﬁ of
‘ the fellows. Finally one fellow goi tired'of it and got up and
| shot at the wolf with a revolver, I don't think he touched himg
but it broke up the party for that night, Father could get & job
over to Helena for $150.00 a month, that is $100.00 for him and
$60.00 for me, and that 160ked better to him that it did to mine,
so we bid Fred goodby and went to Helena to start in freighting.
- We workéd along that summer, getting along towards fall, and father
he was getting homesick and theyre was a boat poming down ‘the
Missouri River and he made up his #find he would come home on the
boat, ‘it wae at Fort Benton. PFred stayed there all suimer and all

that winter and the gulch proved very rich. They got the water

round so0 they could get into their mines. "Fred had another claim
ebove the one he was working then. He got work(there was a couple



of men had jumped his claim and was working it so he went up to
see about it. One was working down in the ground and the other

was working on top windlassing up the dirt. He knew Fred and
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Fred Rept coming right along and he said to Fred, "Don't come any
nearer, if you do I'1l kill you." You couldn't scare Fred at all
and kg‘kept walking right along. This fellow shot at Fred, he

shof to kill, but he didn't hit him the ball went through his

hat. Fred jerked his revolver and killed the fellow deader than

a mackeral The fellow fell right across the hole, caught on ® me
of the timbers. The other. fellow down in the hole hollerg, "Don't:
shoot, I'll get out of here.* ©Fred worked there all summer until
along late in the‘fall but killing that man worried on him, so he
made up his mind he'd quit mining. He soid out and quit. Three of
them and him.séid they'd go back to the States. They went to Fort
Benton, ‘down on the Missouri about a hundred_miles from there, and
built_them.a boat and they floated down to Sioux City. The& stoppéd
to a hotel and therg was two stage lines that left Sioux City at
that time. The Western Stage Line run from Sioux City to Des

‘ Moines to the railroad there, and the other line was the North

Western Stage Lina from Sioux City to the railroad at Iowa Falls,
One of the men went over to the Western S8tage office when they got
there in the afternoon and bought thelr tickets for all four of
them to Des Moines and when the came back he gave Fred his ticket.
They were in their room in their hotel and Fred looked at his

ticket and says, “Say, I don't want to go to Des Moines. I want. to

go to Iowa Falls. Tear up these tickts or do whatever a mind to

you want to with them and I'1l go over to the Northwestern and buy

tickets to Iowa Falls." Each one of the pafty that was with Fred
had a black leather satchel and they had their gold in their sSatchel

)
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hj 149, and when they’d set down they'd put that satchel between thelr feet.

442ﬂ?;'rred Had about $175, 000,00 in his satchel in gold and paper and

f .~ j what the other fellows had he didn't know, that was what he had made

J.é?ﬂ' in two sumers after we had left him. Long in the middle 6f the

F Qﬁ”p:f night word come to the stage that the Fort Des Moines stage had

A= been held up. There was a fellow in the Western office when this
man had bought their tickess to Des Moines and they think he was a
scout for the men that_heid up the stage. The Northwestern stage

with Fred and the men on it got through all right without being

held up. They stopped off here‘to see father and we went down to
the hotel to see them, Fred told the other men that father was all
- right for he was an old partner of his and if thpy wanted to they
. could'leave the grips with him and go out for a walk: Ered went
back to5Germany and married and came back to this country tq
Gilbert Hollow, North Carolina and went into the mines there. He
“invested about all of his money in high prieed mines. Father got
'.a letter from him a feﬁ years afterwards. He says, “Bigelow, all
' Ifve got left is a wife and a 1ittle boy."
| * Tom Bailey, father and myself started for Iowa from Fort Benton,
‘it was along in the fall about September. When we got to Fort Beriton
. ﬂAHV’ the little steamboat. that plyed betveenﬂ Sioux City and Fort Benton
dew*?‘was a few days late. The water was low and it couldn't get up over
- 55 the falls, or ripples for there were so many rocks in the river,
' It could get up to the mouth of the Marias River, twelve miles
below Fort Benton._ We were to go on*the “0qtter", a boat abou%
100 feet long and a stern wheeler. While we were waiting for it
to unloéd two dther boats came in, the "St. Charles" and the

. "Aberdeen." These boats we:e mostly freighters héuling freight

for the mines. Besides these boats the government had their boat '



150. there for the soldiers at Fort Benton and the North Western Fur

#M Comzany, which had a trading post theie, also had their own boat,
A party of eleven men got down to the boat landing before we did

and they got tired of waiting., There was a nigger there that had o
4 iql? !
i
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ﬁ“ back and a party of soldiers went up to see what had become of them,

Juﬂ‘&hey found the eleven white men and the nigger killed, the oxen was

team and wagon and these men hired the nigger to take them up the

/ Marias River for a hunt for two or three days and they didn't come

gone and the wagon was burped up and the clothes was taken from off
all of them. The Wolves had eaten them and the bones were scattered
80 they couldn't tell much about them so they picked up the. scattered
remains and buried them and brought the twelve pairs of boots back

to the boat landing at the mouth of the river and stood them up

about half way in the dirt with a sign on them " Names unknown,
killed by the indians,® The indians didn't want the boots but

" took everything else. We started out one morning early, the

boat pulled out down the river. Father and Bailey worked our passage

down the river by cutting drift wood, The boat burned wood and

/vaJL.there vere no wood yards where Wit wood could be vpurchased so

it
wheén they saw a plle of drift wood the boat would tie yp by it and

the call would come for all hands out to Carry wood, The wood wasg

‘carried on deck in whatever shape it was found and then it would be
cut up in furnace length as. the boat was going along. The boat

didn't travel at night at all on account of the sandbars as it didn't

have any headlight to see its way, Ag it was a freighter it didn't

have any staterooms but each one of us had a hammock in which to sleep,
Going back there was no freight oo board and we hung our hammocks

where it was usually piled on the lower deck. The captain and the

regular help had their rooms on the upper deck but I didn't get up there.
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| 151. Nights the captain would try to get below some island where it was
‘ ,mkyvk sfillvvater and anchor for the night, he wouldn't anchor near the.
‘ ~ ghore on acocount of the indians. The first day out we got down to
d;ﬂas far as what was ca.led Cow Island, which they said was about 210
‘ f v miles from Fort Benton but I don't think it was that far. There in
duﬁjﬂ the mountains whe water was pretty swift and the boat would go faster
‘ '*un than the water could. We started out bright and early the next day
" and. it must have been eight o'clock, such a matter, and we were hugging
the north shore, the current was on that side. There was two indians
setting on the bapk of the river. We come onto them a little unex-
pectedly and as soon as they saw us they run back into the brush and
the 8t. Charles was a fa:ter boat than the Cutter and it was following
us. When they got around to where we saw the two 1ndians they killed.
" 36”1 the pilot on the St. Charles. We got around to a long straight stretch
JﬂA of the river where we could see the St. Charles and we saw the flag
at half mast and the captaln knew something was wrong. The two captains
took the pilot up to a little traaing post there was there ;n@ buried
him. Tﬁere was a great many bﬁffalo along the river, hundreds of

h

them and avery now and then there would be a big flock. I put in ﬁostﬁ

Y
iﬂ!prf my time setting around shooting at the buffaloes from the boat. It '’
LI ol 3
;gior was nice hunting, good sport too, and as big game as that you could

hardly miss them. I killed a few and made a lot of them grunt. Down
a ways below us I saw‘'quite a number of buffaloes going across the

: river, af number had been across ahead of them and the water on their
hidee'had made the clay bank where‘thgy went out slippery. Along the

last end of them was an old bull, he was the last one to hit the shore.

8Bome of the men said, "Therd, George, is your chance." .He stood broad-

side, resting. 80 I took a good deliberate aim at him right behind

the fore shoulders about where I thought his heart was, and pulled
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152, the trigger. I knew I hit him cause I heard the ball hit him ka-spat

dyyw and he walked up the slippery path, or trail rather, about fifteen or

'tvénty feet and he begin to waver and then he sto.ped. In just a
few moments he begun to crumple and down he went and he slid down the
trail to the waters edge and lay thed{re dead. I felt sorry for him
. after I ﬁilled him and I put my gun up and said I was through buffalo
, hunting. I knew I had wouhfded several and maybe killed some. The

I " Aoat never stopped for it as we had plenty of meat on board, When a

L
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" vuffalo.swims he sticks his tail straight up in the air, I suppose
that is for the flies to roost on going across. One day we run
into a band of indians, probably there was 1500 to 2000 of them, it -
was a big ban&, all Sioux. They were crossing the Missouri River and
when they saw us coming the squaws run out to the bank of the river
swinging buffalo'robes, as rueh as to say, "We want to trade." The
&*wﬂcaptainsrun down the river about a guarter of a mile and Enchored anﬁ
4,*‘ run the gangplank out. He had quite a lot of stuff he wanted to trade
Ef with the indians, crackers and calico and I don't know what all, quite
a lot of such stuff as that. I had nothing to trade so I went back up
the river where the indians was coming across, just a little ways from
the boat it was. They'd iake a couple fo bundles of buffalo robes,
tie them on a pony's back, then they'd put about two papooses in ‘
 between thé bundles, drive the pony into the river, and a couple of
older children would grab the pony by the tail. He'd land! on the
other side with about four passengers. I got tired of watching them
so I went back into the crowd. I gét back in amongst the. squaws and
an 0ld squaw grabbed me by the shirt on my arm and held up a buffalo

/'.
robe. I knew in a second what she meant, she wanted to trade me that

robe for my shirt and that started me to thinking. It was a pretty

good shirt, it was red with a white polka dot in it, paid a .dollar for

>
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= 153, it up in Helena. I shook the o0ld squaw away from me and went into
~ v .
‘,ﬂ#’ the crowd. 8he had an old robe and I didn't want the old robe. ‘I

went up to another squaw that had a dandy good robe and I took hold of

—
E L

1 Jylher robe and my shirt and she nodded and I nodded too I guess. Then
-]ﬁvfly I took my shirt off, gave it to her and she gave me the robe. I took
| ’{;ﬂtidthe rp?e and went to the boat and throwed it into my hammock and put
W

P
tn#t' my other polka dot shirt on and started for the qrowd. When I got in

gmongst the squaws, there ﬁas probably a hundred to a hundred and fifty
of them, and the way .they acted they was having a little fun at my
expense. At the back side of the gang there was a young squaw,
R probably twenty years old, and she had a new robe on, a dandy one. I.
pushed them away, the squaws, I don't know how many wanted to trade
 with me, but I wal&ed.up to this young équaw. I got right up close to
her and pointed to her buffalo robe and then to my shirt, then I
-pointed from my shirt to her buffalo robe. They go by signé a good
= deal. .A grin came over her face, I fook my-shirt off, I had kind of
tightened up my pants so they wouldn't fall off this second time, and
gave the shirt to her and she gave me the robe. She had been wearing
the robe fastened on with two strings, one around the neck and the other
around her waist, with her arms out. I néticed that when we traded
- that she had on the same kind of e waist that I did only mine was:
whiter, Besides the robe she was wearing a buckskin skirt and leggings.
Then the fun began with the squaws. I knew what they wanted, they
| wanted me to put my shirt on that girl but I didn't want to lay my
robe down for if I did some son-of—é-gun whould steal it. I thought
- they would mob me before I got out of there.. I had a little single
blanket and I went back and gof it and traded that for another robe,
I got a good robe for the little half blanket., Then I went and got

father's extra shirt, it was a flannel one, we just had twc shifts




154, apiece. FHe had paid ten dollars for his two shirts and I had paid
1}1¢F two dOIiéra for my two. I traded it for another robe but I had a
hard éime trading it off because 1t was a grey woolen, heavy flannel ¢
ghirt end it wasn't as pretty as my red polka dot cotton ones. The -

first shirt I traded to the. squaw she gave to her man and he was &

great big fat old fellow and she get his head out through the hole in

{t
]
{ JJJ& the upper end of the -shirt and his arms in the sleeves ‘and he worked

1t on and get it pretty well on and the old indian folded his arms -

tight quick and ripped the shirt wide open down the back clear from the

—

collar to the. tail and the sleeves come down pretty near to his elbow,
I saw him several times after he got dressed up and every now and then
he ﬁould,loo# at his arm and then grin, that shirt, you know. I don't
know wﬁat he thought but I presume it would have taken quite & little
money to bufy that shirt from that indian. I hunted around for my
young squaw to see how that shirt fit but I didn't see her, probably
shé went back to camp. All the way back to Sioux City My shirt

that I wore was myteﬁépenders with my coat on top. Even at that I
thouéht X ma&e a good trade for the robes back here were worth about
$10.00 apiece. When I got back I traded oned of the robes to the
father of Frank Bliss at Iowa Falls for a complekte suit of clothes,
‘ghoes end all. Frank thinks he still has that robe. When We got

“down tolsioux City father shaved and scrubbed up, we Wwas still on the
boat then. He says, "George, get my shirt.," I did, I went and got
the buffalo robe I had traded the shirt for and said, "Here's your
shirt." He says, “What, did &ou trade my shirt off?"and I says, “Yes,"
"And both of mine too." He never'said a darned word afthe that but
"wfg he didn't like it very well, We got our luggagelo;f the boat and went

h\ up to the hotel and then we got some shirts, scoured up a little, took

the stage that night for Alden. Ve gaot home the next night, about
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rJ 155; 24 hours on the road. The stage tried to average six miles an hour on
J the road. S

‘ ,' The’western indians fn the early days didn't hav; any bridles

or eaddlés for their ponies. _They generally had a long lariat made

out of rawhide. They would tie one end of it around the ponies

’ " Jp’dfneck and then take a half hitqh around the pony's jaw with it and

'f;;bﬁA then they would hold the other, loose, end in their hands. They would

’ t-ﬁﬂJjJ guide the pony by pushing on it's neck on the right side with the

’ ldariat ;f they wanted to go to the left, or if they wanted to go to

. . the right they would pull on the Jaw with the lariat until they had

’ v turned it's head. The lariat was nearly always on the rlght side of

l’ the neck. ' Then when they got after game they would usually drop the
lariat so they could use both hands with their bow. ' If they had to
“get off the pony for anything the pony would usually stay around where
it was left until its owner returned. They had no saddles and rode

" "  Dbareback. A good many of the hunters didn't even have a rope on thelr
ponies and they would do their guiding with elther théér hand or the
end of their bow. Most of the lariats were made out of rawhide but .

' some were made out of hair woven, anything so that the pony wouldn't
eat it.

| If an indian ki.ls any game he goes back and tells his squaw,

jhf“ he doesn't take it into camp. She will take a pony or two, according
iggﬁ‘to the sixe of the anlmal and then go and get it. The indian believes
,ﬁl/ in letting the souaw do all the work. She skins it, cuts up the mat,
T and tans the hlde. I was in an 1nd1an camp once and saw a squaw
cutting up an antelope and cooking it. All the indians in my day
used regular butcher knives for cutting the meat., To cook it she cut

it up.in small chunks and her dish that she éooked it in was a wooden

A



. .156. trough that looked a good deal like a pig trough. It was about four

feet long made out of a single log. It was hollowed out with fire and
gome sharp tool. They would burn it out some and then chip it out some
until the sides were quite thin so as to make it light to carry. The
bottom was hewed off flat and left heavier so that it wouldn't tip
over. To cook the meat she had the trough over half full of cold water
in which she put the meat. She had quite a pile of what we call
“cobblé stones®, stones about as big as your doubled fist, or a little
bigger. 8he had them all iﬂ a good fire and then she took two little
forked sticks to rake a stone out of the fire with and to pic« the
stone up with also and then she would drop this hot rock in the trough
with the meat. She would put about three or four of those stones in
the trough and then when it wuitf boilding around the stone she would
take it out and put a hot one in. She would keep on doiing that until
the meat was cooked, which took quite a while. They weren't very
particular about its being done, that is what we would call d%he. I
noticed there were several pieces of charcoal floating around on the
water and I presume there were a lot of ashes in the bottom of the
"kettle.," .

They dried a good deal of meat for winter use. We called it
*dried® but, they called it "jerked," They would take four forked
stakes about'eighteen inches long, sharpen the end off and stick it
down in the ground with the fork sticking up. Then they would put
nother forked stick about four feet from that one, and then about
two feet sidewise from the forked stéles they would put two more of
them, then they would put a small stick, bigger than your finger from
one forked stake to the other one about four feet away and they woul d

have one on the other side the same way. Then they would cut shorter

Bs‘c&*; s




rJ 157. stakes about two feet long, or just long enough to go across the two
| longer stakes, then they would keen on cutting the shorter stakes and
kajﬁfalaying across the longer sticks about six inches apart until they got
Jﬁﬂlﬁ it all filled uﬁ. Then they would cut their meat in strips usua.ly
'.Aw” slx or eight inches long, the only requirement as to length being that
] they were long enought to stick onto the sticks, Then they would
build a little fire under the nieat the length of their frame and they
* would smoke it and cook it and dry it all at the same time and they
called it "jerked," After a little while it got so darned hard you
couldn}t break it with a sledge hammer, but that was their winter meat.
It would never Spoil'if it w:s properly cured. They all had good teeth.
Whenever they got more meat than the needed just at that time they
would "“jerk" it, looking out for winter. 1In the winter they would
have hard sledding to get out to look after meat if the snow was deep
unless they already had =a supplyﬂ That is all they had to live on in
the winter, _ -
The frame of their tents, or tepees, were made of poles about
ten feet long, more or less according to the size of the tepee. They
! ”j$ﬁﬁwere all set in a circle, coming together near the tops of the poles
ﬁ';&u and where they crossed each other they were tied together with raw-

f’ hide, or ba;k. On the plains they didn't use much bark because there
wasn't the bark to be had. Then over this framework they threw hides,
usually elk skin. The hides were fastened together by cutting slits
alofg the edges of the hides and then stringing rawhide throﬁgh the
slits. The tent covering was made out.of raw hides, not tanned at all,
except they opening where they went into the tepee, which was usually

tanned so that they would throw it back when they went in or out., This

opening was about the height of a man and two or three treet wide. When




+ 158, they would build a fire they woulu build it right on the ground in the

center of the tepee and the smoke would go up through where the roles

were fastened tégether. What didn't go out would 'stay in the tepee.,

Their wardrobe was all around the edges of the tent and they slept on
fi

i butfalo skins laid on the ground. 1I don't know how they slept in the

[ tent but when they were out in the open they always slept with their

' %ugheads next to the tire and their feet out away from it so that il they

o heard anything suspicious when they raised up they would be looking

away from the fire and into the brush, while the white man slept with

his feet to the fire and when he raised up he would have to turn around

to see what the troupl. was. Hbe indian was like the quail, slep

facing out so if they had to get out in a hurry they wouldn't be in

each others way, When they wanted tao move they would tie four or

five poles together near the end and then they would fas ten two of

these bundlqs of poles so that they were two or three feet apart. They

would then put this over the pony's neck, with a bundle of the poies

on each sgide of the pony, and then fasten them together under the pony's

neck so that it couldn't get out from between the poles but
to drag the: along.

would have
Then batk of the rong they would f
together with etrips or th

a8ten the poles

@ rawhide and then tie the tents and other

things to these poles, put_three or tour papooses on top of the bundles

| and wWway they would go,
\' of dust,

The dogs would have to walk. They made a lot

I have of'ten wondered since how they went through tke brush
that way, but they did.

l: They

would have a little tepee about four or five feet high annd

l' 8 or 10 feet around at the bottom and covered all over with the ravhide,

no opening on the top like their living tent, and with Just a little

]. Obening on the 8ide to get in. 7ne fray
‘e
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159, made by sticking a willow stick in the ground and bending it over and

-

tying it to another one that was stuck in the ground on the oprosite
side. They iould keep going on around this way until they had the
circle compléted and it was oval on top.. This kind 6f a tepee was
used for giving sweat baths only. $hey would have quiie & Lliotis

piie uf houd stones in there, and some water, and they would pour

" that cold water onto the stones, & little at a time. It wouldn't

be but a short time until it would be hotter than the dickess in
there and they would get up an awful sweat in there in a short time.
Then they would come out with nothing on only their breechclouts
and the cold wind would hit them when they were wetter than the
dickens. That was used to cure some kind of sickness but I do not
know what kind.

The first school was located on about ﬁot B,.Block 11, Original_

Town of Alden, just about where the house is that is owned by the

_&llens, whese M. 0, Thompson lives at present. The old schoolhouse

was moved to the lots west in the same block when the present house

'was built and the school building is now a part of the house owned

by the Harris heirs where Glenn Boyington lives. I do not know the
exact date it was built ¥ut was smbout 1856. There was no other building
on the hill there and it was all playground for us young ones aﬁd the
‘hill to the north made a fine coasting ground. We had a great many .
spelling schools then and after it was out the oldér folks would

Jjoin us in sliding down hill. Mr. Whitney built his house at the

foot of the hill and he fenced it anduhis garden and that spoiled
our coasting tiack. At spelling schools we would always have a recess
and then everybody would slide down hill for a little while. At those

timgs we would usually use the long ox sleds to slide down with and
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everybody would pile on, usually six to ten, or as many as could
pile on, then they would turn the omngEtongue back over the sled

and two or three men would stand up and take hold of the tongue to

}fﬂ guide it. They generally made it all right but every now and then

it wouldn't go right and they would have a spill. I mever knew of
anybody getting seriously hurt with their spills. Along in the

fall they fixed the old schoolhouse over, olastered it, and the masons
had left a twelve foot board there that they had used in the mortor
box and the sun had qulrrelea the edses up so th t it made a good

sled for about eight of us to slide down hill on, and there wasg eight
of us that had exclusive right of that -board. About half way down

the hill we put a piece ot stovewood, packed the uphill side with snow
to make it~smqbth and then poured water on it to freeze to make a

hard track. This made'a jump-off so that when we slid down the hi.ll

if everything wént right‘we would jump six or eight feet before

hits 1ng the slide again and if we hit right we,would stay on and

s11de the rest of the way down the hill but if we hit sideways we
would all slide off the board and roll everyway. We would guide it

by about the four on the front end sticking thelr heels in the snow
and if they turned it tao sharp we would all go Off, bmt we all had

fun with it. ‘The four on the back were just passengers for when they

- sat down on the board, it was about eighteen inches wide, the one in

front would graeb the legs of the one sitting behind him and hold them
up so they wouldn't drage and stop the sliding, but if it rolled they
went with it., I was tle smallest one 1nufhe crowd and I was at the
back end and rolled Just as far as any of thew when it tioped over.
The meanest boy in school played a trick on us one night at the
spelling school recess. He had token an aXe and, cut the ice away

from above the Jum=off, back about a foot from tne jump-ff, cut it




_151. down about two inches deep so the board wouldn't slide over when it
| : came tu it. Then he drove a little nail in each end of our board,
’ A about a feot from esch end, so the nail stuck through pretty near a
v AN

. quarter of an inch. Us boys that owned the board got it at the top
] ¢

‘ ﬂfil of the hill and we a.l got on and started down and when the board

f

| struck that piece of stovewood at the Jump-off the board stopped and

we went right on and when we picked ourselves up every feldow had his
» hands on the bosom of.his pants where the little nail got it's work in.
That night ended up with a right or two and everybody vient home
satisfied, I guess.
al Those days I never went to school very much for father was
always good to me, ie let me got to school or go fishing and I
generally went a fishing.
The furniture in the school house was all homemacde. The fist
ﬁjj year we didn't have any désk, just the benches thst we sat on. They
;;ﬁﬁ%ere madé a Zood deal like our lawn benches we have now with a back
F“ on them. They were made out of native oak lumber that was sawed right
here. They got pretty tiresome sit.ing on them but we had rlenty of
time to wiggle and twist around to rest them. The benches were of
: different lengbhs, soma long and some short, several of us setting on
one bench, The fi¥$t year we put our books on the bench beside us or
on the floor under our feet, but the next year they had makeshift
u desks. Everything was homemade and they were working just as fast
as they could to make things better. Most of the desks were made for
Just one or two scholars but there were ‘Some with four scholais, These
were set around the edges of the schoolroom, I dodMt remember but one
Tow down through the center of the room. Of course, them days ihere

weren't so many scholars us nowdays., There was just one room in the

schoolhouse and the children kept coming in until it B0t crowded ang

= =
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162. then they built the brick schoolhouse with two rooms in it, one up-

stairs and one down. Then we got grod furniture when that schoolhouse

was completed and we moved over,

We used to have spelling schools about once g month during the

winter mbnths. That was one of the great attractions at Alden for

there was nothing much else to do. Bverybody would €0, men and women,

old and young, and everybody take part. They would choose two

captains and-then these captains would choose who they

wanted on their

sides, first one captain would choose some one and then the other

captain would niake a choiee, choosing alternately until a.l were

were chosen. When anybody was chosen they would get up and join the

line by the captain that chose them. T en the schoolmaster, or some-

one, would take g McGuffy Speliing book, and give out the words., If

anyone missed a word he would have to sit down and then the one on the

orposite side whuld have g chance to spell it. They kept doing that,

bronouncing the words alternatley first to one row and then to the

other, and kept doing it until all these on one-side or the other had

misspelled a word and had to sit down and then the other side was

declared the winner as far as sides were concerned. If there were

more than one lerft stending in the wiuning side the schoolmaster would

bronounce the words to them until just one wuns lert stinding and he

WLs decléred the winner for that night. After everybody but one was

spelled down they would 11 take 8 recess and €0 out and slide down

hill for a while,

At tihnt tine tlie schoeclhouse was the center of all sociel
activities for the Coramnity. All tre sliovis, and e€verytling, was
held in the schoolhouge until Alden's Hall was built in 187Q7

and then the sho.s and entertainmants were moved to that hall, we
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] 163. wused to have what Wele called “Panaranas", "Puppet Shows" and other

] "one-horse" shovs, The Panaramas were a &00d deal like our

ﬁ}; lanterns were wegth PH#EliRE victures throw
w

the time of the

magic
N on a canwas und during
Civil wur they were mostly pictures.of the var,

Some of them hag little tin-soldiers ti.

't would “perform", I don't

v ) . .
4'#Ub know just how they were operated bLut they were wound with g scring
j: some  way and would march around until they run down and thep they

would have to be wvound agzin.  They

were a grand thing to usg children.
]_ The Puppet Shows were a Punch

and Judy outfit, Af'vz2> the Alden's
Hall was built We had

. regular road shows in it cnd the dances were
], held there inste. d of down in the Usher House,
1 During the Civil War the nearest railroad to thig ~art of the

country was at Cedar Falls and those who hzd enlisted to the north-

JEH west of here useg to cone through here going to the railroad. They
v’@\ Were in a regular big faim wagon with two to four horses to each

Auﬁﬂ wagon with cowmon Spring seats in them, all they could get on, so that
r E there would bpe eight or ten ien to each wagon. Tre last outfig I
" Saw go through was from Webster City and there were about fifteen
1 wagons in the outfit, The head wagon carried the St:

1& &nd Stripes,
e They all weie whooping

and hollering as they went through town, I
o think thewy were sent to Dubuque for training.
When we were €oing west with the oxen train when we got to the
g Elkhorn River wes

t of Omaha from there on out to tle mountains the
1,
,-u"

fuel wae Bcarce. At the Blkhorn ve vicied up o big log a £00d foot

Ly through and tep or twelve feet long and we hung it under one of the

- Wagons., We had a sheetiron stove and when it was damp and wet and
} . . ;

© fuel was Scarce, then we'q go for the o0ld log we had under the w
4™

W
J.
.
-

agon,
and the buifalo Chipg w

A% scarce too ang 1ot very good to burn in




164 demp weather, There was no trees along the Flatte River but once
k@”v' in a while on sone of the islands in the river there was some
/;ﬁ brush or small tfees. We never got any wood until we got into the
~UV hills near the mountains and then we begun to get wood. We didn't
g burn grass because there wasn't enough of it for there had beeh 80
many emmigrant trains along thset there was no grass left. nThe only
big tree that I can remeuber was pretty well up towards the mountains.
I know Mr. Whitney was lying on his back, it was a warm day, and we'd
.#§L stopped for noon. Whitney ﬁbllered to me and said, “Here's one of

J
s g\
AV
}tﬂyﬁ your friends, George." 1If there was an indian around it was always

i - 2 'y g .
1 b P . 4 .

Jh'f my friend. I looked around and I couldn't dee any indian and I

' Upl sald, "Where is he, 1i'r, Whitney?" "Why," he says, "he's tied on
LY
g that big limb way up in the tree." He was buried there and the

other indians had given him that much of a start towards heaven. :

One day dovn on the Platte River we met three young Sioux L

. . ¢ 3
ﬂﬁffbucks, and darn mean ones too, going east on foot. Three #% or
A E '
"

F@ia four days after that they passed us going west and each one of them [1
Ji 5ﬂ-qu riding a pony and driving 25 or 30 loOse”ponies ahead of them. J
_‘ﬂ ¢ As they passed us one indian hollered out, "Heap Paﬁnee." They had [
'_bﬁ been down and stole.them from the Pawvnee Indians and wel'e going back [J

v home with them hajypy as a laik. =
g jj; Another day on the Platte River we saw a band of indians coming F
Qb &i and when they got near enough to tell what they were they was mostly J
““{Yb squaws: Mr. Whitney says, "Now, George, here's a chance to 2et you J
o a wife, pick oﬁt me." They come vy, ﬁhd turned out and passed us, I J

think probably e courle of hundred of them, and the never even looked
up at us or said word. One of the squaws was a lot bettexr dressed

than the rest  them and Irv. seid I could huve her but I didn't

make any advances towards her., Thicg outfit had no poles, nor nothing,




I 165 with them, they were travelling light and going right along. Probably
] the men were all out hunting someplace and they were Zgoing to meet
] ﬂ them, they knew where they were going and we didn't. See a gaing of
indians off thirty or forty rods you couldn't tell whether they were
]aﬂa?(; all bucks or all sguaws for they 2 1 rode straddle. Mr. “hitney

picked out a great rany squaws for me tiat sumn .r but I never liked

] ] hi: judgnent. .

J There was & young indian come to our canp along the Platte River '
<= and he had a piece of boiled ham stuck on ai arrow and he wanted to

J give it to we and I shook ny hexd that I didn't want it. He took a

_; bite of it to show me tt wasn't poison, it was all right, then I

4\ A%P# took a wigger bite than the one he had and %hen he grinned and took

;ﬁﬁ”ﬂﬂ a small bite. It tasted awful good to me and we kept at it umtil

ﬂn ve ate the whole piece of meat up. Then he wanted me to come over

rl and stay all night with him but I didn't knovw where his camp was and
T4

didn't go. They g0 by signs thuot way and I could read their signs

;J as vell as the girls recd their hooks today, they 'did it all with

their finuers. He didn't like tle 8slty ham but I did and he would
take a little bite and then hand it over to me and I would take a

| big one, until it was all gone and I had the last bite, After it was
“ all eaten he put his arrow back into his quiver,

‘. (8ee page 135) It vas rough over the mountains and rough
traveling. When ve 2ot to the @allatin Valley we stoome d there but
Mr. Whitney went on to Virginia City. 7Tt was probably s month oy

Six weeks bLefore I went to town and I uef ind he says, "Say, George,
I've got Pive dollars for dou."  Te gijd "I Aidn't get very much for
thoze fish for the £tone we had on them slipned off from the sticks and

went down through and chawed them all up, some of them vere mostly good,

I don't know what he got for thew but he CEVe me QS 00 for wmy oharn

=
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Wveryvthing was paid in gold dust there then and that was the first
gold dust I ever saw or evel got. Then T had to buy me & buckskin

beg to carry it in. The bags were all double sewed fou the gold dust

was so fine that it fhe bag was only single sewed it would work through,

If the keg of fish had been all right he probably would have gotten
ygorty or FPifty Dollars for it.

(See page 67) Hé Braden and nyself were nesr the foot of Long's
Peak. We always had pancakes for breakfast, griddle cakes for diuner
and slapjacks for supper and we woudd generally in the evefnirg play
cards to see which one viould g:ease the frying pan and the other
fellow fry the cakes and nmy job most always fell onto me to fiy the
cakes. When I wanted to turn them I would teke ny knife and run around
the edge of “them to loosen them, then I'd give thew a lilttle hitch
or two to loosen them, then throw them up and tlhey would turn in the
air and I would ketch them in ny fiying pan bottom up. Hd was watching
me and said "Give me that frying pan." Fe give it a little flip amd
the cake only tumed half ovexr onto the other hzlf that had stuck in
the pan, then he give it 2 good jerk and avay went the pancake clear
up into the roof of thie shanty. I said, "Ed, whuat are you doing?"
and he said "I am setting the tubde." I told iLhat the next cuke I
wanted a little lower down so ti.at I could re:chh it, ‘hen he hanaed

the frying pan back to me and told me that ir I vus dissatisfied I

.could bake them myself and he tuok the greaser. Qur grecsers were

strips of pork rinds and the bottom hinge of our door to the cabin
vas made out of one of those greasgrs and the mice used to gEnaw the
darned thing in tvwio and then we'd put on cnother greascr,

The first timc I was ever up to Wall Lake I went :m there :ith

a party from town on a nicnic excursion, zone two or three days, In

those days there was a lot of open water in the lake, not very mamy

o

N
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r;]167 rushes in the lake. It took us about a day to go up there and they

A)P took me along to furnish meat for them. We got our camp all settled
f IQ and everything. They sent me down to the house to see if I could
f buty some milk. There wes g family there by the name of Purcell

J that owned that part of the country then. I got rretty near to the

J house and a boy came out witl g pan of ovats to fee a Jack that they

had tied there and quick =s he saw me he stopyed in the dvor, I says,

"Can I buy some millk here™ and I knew by the way he spoke he was

J acyuainted with me. He turned around and he says, "Mz, here's another

: dann fool that waats to buy some milk." I got ny milk and went back

J to the camp. I picked up my shotzun and went around on the south side
of the lake. There was a gnod wall thenm days around the lake, it was
made out-of dirt 4 stonss ond Sone claimed it was made by the
indians and some claimed it was msde by the water and ide. I could

wall along the outside of this #nd my head would come to about the
top of the wall. 4bout that tiie a flock of ducks come swinging
vy around and I xilled & couple. They fell out in the lake g little
wayé and I took myshoes and stockings anid rants o1 f snd went snd cot
_? them. Twant but a few minutes before more ducls cone zlong and I o

killed two of them and they fell = 1lttle farther along to my richt,

I was having some zood shooting there., WMr. McClara, one of our paxty,
“heard my shooting and he picked up his gun :nd cowme over to where I

16\9 o
& Wes. He got within tiftecen or twenty feet of me and he stopped all
%{'at once, He says, "Looka here, George.," 1T seye, "What is it Mr,

1 .

< L

~ McClara?" and he sa;s, "Looka there." wWe pointed down in the path
3 | :

{ and tliere lay a rettlesnnkoe all quilieled up. Probably I kad run
Over him a dozen times barefooted. We visited & little while sng T

went back and put my clothes on, I wasn't huating rettlesnakes., Went



168. dovn around the lake quite a little ways and he took his clothes off,
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! {4 with Ben Birdsall, he was a Judze afterwards, and going up I killed
sl
RY o

ﬁtp he wanted to get into thie water anyhow, he took ull his clothes of £

and went in after his duck. He walxed out a ways but the gravel

hurt his feet and it was a little muddy, so he lay down &nd crawled
out to where his duck was. When he got back to shore he held up his
hand 2nd says "Looka there, George, I'vé lost my ring." He had pullead
it off in the mud when he was crawling. It was a $10,:0 gold piece

he had made the ring out of. He says, "You've got twelve ducks snd
I've got one, let's go buck to camp." Thet ended that hunt.

A year or two after that Purcell sold out to 01d man Birdsall and
he took charge there. .

Birdsall had quite a family of bovs and I used to £0 up quite
often with one of his boys that lived here in town. Host of his
children were going to school heie at that tize. One time I went up
y _

a few chickenms, I always took wmy shotgun with me whereever I went.

We got up there in good season, had a nice supper and visit., I went
back down to the barn and there our chickens was in the bugzy. I
hollered to Ben, "What will we do with these chickens?" Mr. Biidsall
hetird me. MHe says, "Throw the dann thiings Over into the hog pén and
I'1l give you souething ror breakfast you don't zet in Alden every day."
I did, I throwed them over into the.hog pen aud the next morning he’
passed me a plate of fried salt pork. "There" he says, "you don't

get that every day down in Alde..." b

A:party of us hunters want up thicrc one day and quick as we drove
up we wanted to get his permission to cawp in the grove. Charley
Birdsall said tkhat we could go ahead and camp anywhere we wanted to.

The old man birdsall says to Charley, "Is George Pigelow thei1e?) 1

Wwant to talk to him." So I went w: to the house where the o01ld sentleman

1 5 1 5 g




was. He said thele was a pair of swan up in the north end of the
lake and they have got three young ones and damn you, you let them
alone, and I told him I would end I did. With all the parties I
went up there with he always gave me all the orders what to do =nd
what not to do. After we got our lunch I wanted to see those swang

so I got a boat and I went clear up to the north end, probably a mile
and a half. Up t: the north end was black rushes and reeds:and a lot
of open water though. I rowed around there, back and forwards, until
I run onto them. I scared them up, there was the iive of them there
just as the 0ld man said. They flew a little ways and 1it and I seared
them up a second time and them I let them aldne. I was awful glad the
0ld man called my attention to them. The swan went away in the fall
and a vair of them come buack the next spring. They didn't stay long,
they got scared out or somebody killed them. Thoce days most of the

lake was clear water and deep too. The party I was with was Frank

Sperry, Charley Furry, ken Lighthall and Al Merrill. Along tovards

right the nosguitoes was awful bud there in the gmove so they said
"let's hitch up and go down to the south end of thLe lake, there's a
good camp grohnd down trere." so we did. It was a good place to
bathe, good gravelly bottom, In the morning before any of them got
up I got up and went south out on the prairie sbout s half a mile,

I got into a flock of lon:z billed snipe, or Curlew. I shot tour or
five of them and tlien I went back to caup. I dresced them and started
cooking them for breakfast, the rest of the Loys vere out swinning.

I got m, Dbirds cooked, got breakfaép fEady, and then hollered to them
to come up that breakfast was ready, Ther hadn't any clothes on when
they came up to cump for breawfast. One of thex said, "Nobody is
going to eat brea rast in this crowd witl their clothes on." So they
Jumped onto me and pulled my right back out st the way of the rire
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170, and it wasn't vut o short ti.e until I didn't have any clothes on,

One of theu says, "Now, George, you can eat brealfast with us,"

After breakfast we hitcheg up and drove down to “ebster City and

séayed there that night snd then drove hornie,

One tire I was up to the laks with Charley McMillen, Burns

and Cox and we got out on the lake Lh:ere alon
i that we could get a place to be ther.
Wi _

mf‘i (#f Looked awful rainy, bad weather,
L
(W

g towards evening so
early in the morning. It

and it begin to rain. I started
for the farmiouse,

I didn't want to set in the boat all night,

raining,
with no cover and T hadn't zone but a little ways before I run onto

Charley McMillen setting in his boat, I tokd hin that T was going to

ttie house to get a bed for I vusn't going to set in thie rain all night,

He says, "Pull your boat right along beside wmine here anu s&ay with

me tonight." §o 1 did. I fustened my boat to some bullrushes there

and I says to fetch your runchpples and naddles and put them in my
: boat and he did, New, he says, we'il stick them rigsht down beside

I've got a big canvas here and we
it over the boat and we

KINN the boat in the mud, '11 sc.retch
’d

'11 be in the dry. It kept a raining harder,

a little wind but not much, and T™nrns and Cox was out in their boats

wé with nothing over them, just their coats, and Ciarley VeMilien and
;.§§ I was in the dry. Once in a vhile the canvae would get up on the edge
J

RS of the boat aad the rain would come into the boat a liitle, Along

{7 + towards morning I got up to see if I could See any brewak in the e:st,
;? i

\; Charley he was lying there all stretched out, all at once he let a

whoop out of him and says "Get on your ov.n side o1 tke boat," uite
a little water in the bout aud me being on his gide tinped the boat

up edgewise and he Says all tint wvater in the boat wng running dowu

his back, Vell, I got back on Wy owr side then, It quite raining
a.lon.r to T ) 13 vier s e . e .
& wards morning snd we haa Pretty sood ducy shooting af'ter
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the sun got up.

Fay and I was out there on tre lake one morning. We got around
gome reeds and the first thing we knew trere was a flock of ducks
right over us in front of us and we both shat twice. Fay says,

"Dad, I believe you shot at gne .of my ducks." Well, lets go and

pick your ducks up, I says and we did, and now we'll go and pick up

my two and we did. Well, we got several ducks thut day.

I was up to the Rirdsalls trere one day and we all slept that

‘night in one'room, good beds. They had a dutchman working for them,
great big green fellow. He couldn't get a shoe around town here big
enough for him so old man Rirdsall sent off and got two pair of twelves
for him, the hired wan. We boys 2ll got to bhed that nisht, qhite a
storm coming up, thindering and lightening asd everything. One of the
Birdeall boys, I think it was Ray, was sleeping with this hired man,

he was on the backside of the bed next to the wall., He,Ray, Bot his
knees all'drawed up with his feet right in the middle of the dutchman's
back, and he waited for a flash of lightening and one cam awful close
just the second that flash came he throwed trgt dutchman clear out

onto the floor and then the thunder cane, followed it right up. Ekay
says, "Good God, dodn't vou know enough to get up when the house is

struck by lightening?"

One bitter cold day I wes couing frow Clorion end I wulled into

/
Eirdsalls for the night. The 0ld gentlemun =ng T visited there guite

a while durirng the evenirn: .
SL i nir.r T [0 P ITN, . . . . )
G ening. He steppad inte « little rocn and Tetched

out a bg#tle. Te save  WRen 4 Yo .
b8 bpgitle. He says, “Read on tlat boltle® and T did. Now he suy s,

L 8 \ r3 e~
"Teste of it.," I soye, "No, thenk you, if T'd taste of it then T

' L1 ] cre rr
Could“ t tell wi:at it V-,."cis." Tl.l;ell, he l[-UJch =1d then _[:ut t].".e hottle

back Getti &,
k. ing a A Ve y i
g alon2 towirds the widdle ¢of ti.e evening and he e
e g & (2 | SE

.ys,




